
FEB. 21 
2019

SAN ANTONIO HOUSING 
FACILITY CORPORATION 
MEETING



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY CORPORATION 
BOARD MEETING 

722 S. Mel Waiters Way, San Antonio, TX 78203 
2:00 p.m., Thursday, February 21, 2019 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
1. The Board of Directors may hold a closed meeting pursuant to Texas Government Code § 551.071-076                         

for consultation concerning attorney-client matters, real estate, litigation, personnel, and security                   
matters. The Board reserves the right to enter into closed meeting at any time during the course of                                 
the meeting.

MINUTES 
2. Minutes

● Approval of the November 1, 2018, San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation Meeting minutes

OPERATIONS 
3. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 19FAC-02-22, authorizing the San Antonio Housing                   

Facility Corporation to sell an approximately 5.01 acre parcel improved with a 98,587 square foot                           
warehouse located at 1310 S. Brazos between Tampico Street and S. Laredo Street in San Antonio,                             
Bexar County, Texas; the sale of such property to SAY Sí in the amount of $2.2 million; and the                                   
execution of any and all documents necessary to consummate such transaction (Steven Morando,                       
Director of Procurement and General Services; Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management)

4. Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 19FAC-02-21, authorizing the San Antonio Housing                   
Facility Corporation (SAHFC) to approve the transaction with the Oaks of Westlakes Apartments,                       
including the execution of all documentation necessary to carry out the transaction; authorizing the                         
purchase of the apartments and the lease of such apartments; authorizing the acquisition of the                           
membership interest in SAHFC Oaks of Westlakes LP, LLC; and authorizing the financing for such                           
transaction; and other matters in connection therewith (Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal                         
Services Officer)

5. *Closed Session:
Consultation with Attorney
Deliberate and obtain legal advice regarding legal issues pursuant to Texas Government Code Sec.                         
551.071 (1)(B)(settlement offer).

● Discussion of proposed settlement of the Cause No. 2018CV01851, Don Albert Payne and Gloria                         
Jean Payne vs. Midcrown Pavilion Apartments in the County Court at Law No. 3, Bexar County,                             
Texas

6. Adjournment

*Note: Whenever the Texas Open Meetings Act (Section 551.001 et seq. of the Texas Government Code) provides for a closed meeting in matters                                             
concerning legal advice, real estate, contracts, personnel matters, or security issues, the Board may find a closed meeting to be necessary. For                                           
the convenience of the citizens interested in an item preceded by an asterisk, notice is given that a closed meeting is contemplated. However,                                             

Page 2 of 30



the Board reserves the right to go into a closed meeting on any other item, whether it has an asterisk, when the Board determines there is a need                                                       
and a closed meeting is permitted.   
“Pursuant to § 30.06, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with a concealed handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H, Chapter                                           
411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a concealed handgun.” 
“Pursuant to § 30.07, Penal Code, (trespass by holder license holder with an openly carried handgun), a person licensed under Subchapter H,                                           
Chapter 411, Government Code (handgun licensing law), may not attend this meeting with a handgun that is carried openly. 

Page 3 of 30



MINUTES 
SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY CORPORATION 

November 1, 2018 

SCHEDULED:  1:00 p.m. San Antonio Housing Authority 818 S. Flores, San Antonio, TX, 78204 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Charles R. Munoz, Vice-Chair 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Director 
Charles Clack, Director 
Marie R. McClure, Director 
Jessica Weaver, Director 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM, Chair 

COUNSEL:  Doug Poneck, Escamilla & 
Poneck, LLP 

TRANSLATOR: BCC Communications 

STAFF: 
David Nisivoccia, President and CEO 
Muriel Rhoder, Chief Administrative 
Officer 
Ed Hinojosa, Chief Financial Officer 
Timothy E. Alcott, Real Estate and Legal 
Services Officer 
Janie Rodriguez, Director of Human 
Resources 
Adrian Lopez, Director of Community 
Development Initiatives  
Michael Reyes, Director of 
Communications and Public Affairs 
Jo Ana Alvarado, Director of Innovative 
Technology 

Steven Morando, Director of Procurement and  
General Services 
Domingo Ibarra, Director of Security 
Hector Martinez, Director of Construction Services 
and Sustainability 
Aiyana Longoria, Director of Internal Audit 
Brandee Perez, Director of Federal Housing 
Programs 
Kristi Baird, Director of Beacon Communities 
Diana Kollodziej Fiedler, Director of Finance and 
Accounting 
Thomas Roth, Director of Asset Management 
Richard Milk, Director of Policy and Planning 

Item 1:  Meeting called to order 
Vice Chair, Charles R. Munoz, called the meeting to order at 1:12 p.m. 

Item 2: Minutes 
● Approval of the October 18, 2018, San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation                   

Meeting minutes

Motion: Director Clack moved to approve the minutes. Director McClure seconded the motion.                       
Approved. 

Member  Aye  Nay 
 Absent 

At Time of Vote 

Charles R. Munoz, Vice Chair  X 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Director  X 
Charles Clack, Director  X 

Page 4 of 30



Marie R. McClure, Director  X 
Jessica Weaver, Director  X 

Item 3: Resolution 18FAC-10-18, authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation to                   
acquire 7.125 acres of land at 9323 Somerset Road, San Antonio, Texas, and the                           
execution of any and all documentation necessary to consummate such transaction   
Resolution 18FAC-10-18, corresponds with San Antonio Housing Authority Resolution                 
5855. Mr. Timothy E. Alcott had previously reported on October 18, 2018, that the Costa                             
Mirada Apartment complex is a 9% tax credit partnership with NRP Group that was                           
constructed in 2008. The initial fifteen year compliance period for Costa Mirada will                         
become due in 2023. The property has positive cash flow and has 95.3% occupancy. The                             
land of interest is located in Councilman Rey A. Saldana’s City Council District 4. 

As previously reported, the size of the lot, 7.125 acres, and its proximity to Costa Mirada                               
makes it an appealing purchase. The opportunity to purchase 7.125 acres, at that price,                           
that is zoned multi-family makes it an attractive parcel for future development. It is                           
anticipated that the lot would be developed after the tax credit compliance period is                           
completed in five years. The cost to purchase the land is $325,000.00 plus closing costs                             
and will be funded with MTW funds. 

Motion: Director Clack moved to approve Resolution 18FAC-10-18. Director Weaver seconded the                     
motion. Approved. 

Member  Aye  Nay 
 Absent 

At Time of Vote 

Charles R. Munoz, Vice Chair  X 
Thomas F. Adkisson, Director  X 
Charles Clack, Director  X 
Marie R. McClure, Director  X 
Jessica Weaver, Director  X 

Item 4: Adjournment. 
With no objections, Vice Chair, Charles R. Munoz adjourned at 1:13 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ _______________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM Date 
Chair, Board of Directors 

_____________________________ _______________ 
David Nisivoccia Date 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Page 5 of 30



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY CORPORATION February 21, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation 

RESOLUTION 19FAC-02-22, AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY               
CORPORATION TO SELL AN APPROXIMATELY 5.01 ACRE PARCEL IMPROVED WITH A                     
98,587 SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE LOCATED AT 1310 S. BRAZOS BETWEEN TAMPICO                     
STREET AND S. LAREDO STREET IN SAN ANTONIO, BEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS; THE SALE OF                           
SUCH PROPERTY TO SAY SÍ IN THE AMOUNT OF $2.2 MILLION; AND THE EXECUTION OF                             
ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONSUMMATE SUCH TRANSACTION 

______________________ ____________________ _______________________ 
David Nisivoccia     Thomas Roth Steven Morando 
President and CEO Director of Asset Director of Procurement 

Management and General Services
___________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 19FAC-02-22, authorizing the San Antonio                   
Housing Facility Corporation to sell an approximately 5.01 acre parcel improved with a 98,587                           
square foot warehouse located at 1310 S. Brazos between Tampico Street and S. Laredo Street in                               
San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas; the sale of such property to SAY Sí in the amount of $2.2                                   
million; and the execution of any and all documents necessary to consummate such transaction. 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
The most recent appraisal performed by Noble and Associates valued the parcel at $2.2 million                             
as of October 23, 2018. The bid price is consistent with the appraised value. The San Antonio                                 
Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC) will utilize the net sale proceeds.  

SUMMARY: 
On December 21, 2018, San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation issued an Invitation For Bids                           
“IFB” #1812-998-84-4872 for the sale of a parcel of land containing approximately 5.01 acres and                             
improvements located at 1310 S. Brazos, San Antonio, Texas, 78207, being identified as Lot 16,                             
New City Block 36A that closed on January 11, 2019. The IFB was published on the SAHA                                 
website, Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD), the Hart Beat, posted on NAHRO, Public                         
Purchase and direct solicited to twenty-three vendors. A total of one bid was received in                             
response to this solicitation from SAY Sí  that is consistent with the appraised value. 

SAY Sí was launched as an umbrella program under the King William Neighborhood                         
Association in 1994. They are a nonprofit creative youth development program that                       
provides students with opportunities to develop the artistic and social skills needed to                         
prepare for college and artistic careers. They offer tuition-free onsite programs serving                       
250 students annually, primarily from low income families, ranging in age from 10-19.                         
They also serve an additional 2,500 youth in offsite community programs. 

Page 6 of 30



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY CORPORATION February 21, 2019 

SAY Sí intends to renovate this property into their headquarters and Westside Campus.                         
This will allow them to expand their capacity by 150%, and triple their community program                             
participation. Their current programs include Visual Arts, Working Artists and Mentors,                     
Media Arts Studio, Activating Leadership, Art and Science, Artists Building Communities,                     
and Home for Innovation and Video Ecology. They will be adding expanded                       
opportunities in the areas of printmaking, radio broadcasting, blogging, and music. Their                       
future initiatives will include youth-focused journalism, literary and culinary arts,                   
community-based teacher training in school programs, community-based arts programs                 
focused on the surrounding public housing and Title 1 schools; (a federal program that                           
provides funds to schools and school districts serving high numbers of economically                       
disadvantaged children. Its goals are to ensure that high-risk students meet at least the                           
minimum proficiency on state academic standards and assessments, and that they have                       
a fair opportunity to earn a high-quality education); and initiatives focused on emerging                         
artists of color and emerging cultural leaders of color. 

Letters of support accompanied their response to the IFB and are attached for your                           
reference: City of San Antonio, Mayor Ron Nirenberg; City Council District 5, Shirley                         
Gonzalez, Councilwoman; City Council District 1, Roberto Trevino, Councilman; Alamo                   
Community College District, Dr. Mike Flores, Chancellor; Hispanic Chamber of                   
Commerce, Rebecca Q. Cedillo, CEO; Westside Development Corporation, Leonard                 
Rodriguez, CEO; the Guadalupe Cultural Arts Center, Christiana Bali, Director; Good                     
Samaritan, Simon G. Salas, Chief Executive Officer; SA Christian Hope Resource Center,                       
Megan Legacy, Executive Director; Inner City Development, Patti Radle, Executive                   
Director and SAISD Board President; and, San Antonio Cultural Arts Center, Ben Tremillo,                         
Executive Director.  

STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 19FAC-02-22 
Map 
Letters of Support 
Ad List 

Page 7 of 30



San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation 
Resolution  19FAC-02-22 

RESOLUTION 19FAC-02-22, AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY               
CORPORATION TO SELL AN APPROXIMATELY 5.01 ACRE PARCEL IMPROVED WITH A                     
98,587 SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE LOCATED AT 1310 S. BRAZOS BETWEEN TAMPICO                     
STREET AND S. LAREDO STREET IN SAN ANTONIO, BEXAR COUNTY, TEXAS; THE SALE OF                           
SUCH PROPERTY TO SAY SÍ IN THE AMOUNT OF $2.2 MILLION; AND THE EXECUTION OF                             
ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO CONSUMMATE SUCH TRANSACTION 

WHEREAS, on December 21, 2018, San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC) issued an                         
Invitation For Bids “IFB” #1812-998-84-4872 for sale of a parcel of land containing approximately                           
5.01 acres and improvements located at 1310 S. Brazos, San Antonio, Texas, 78207, being                           
identified as Lot 16, New City Block 36A that closed on January 11, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, one bid was received in response to the solicitation from SAY Sí; and 

WHEREAS, the most recent appraisal performed by Noble and Associates valued the parcel at                           
$2.2 million, as of October 23, 2018. The bid price is consistent with the appraised value. SAHFC                                 
will utilize the net sale proceeds; and 

WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Directors authorize the Secretary/Treasurer, or designee,                       
to execute all documents necessary to consummate such transaction. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of SAHA hereby: 

1) Approves Resolution 19FAC-02-22, authorizing the San Antonio Housing Facility               
Corporation to sell an approximately 5.01 acre parcel improved with a 98,587 square                       
foot warehouse located at 1310 S. Brazos between Tampico Street and S. Laredo                       
Street in San Antonio, Bexar County, Texas; the sale of such property to SAY Sí in the                               
amount of $2.2 million; and the execution of any and all documents necessary to                         
consummate such transaction.

2)  Authorizes the Secretary/Treasurer, or designee, to execute all documents necessary                 
to consummate such transaction.

Passed and approved the 21st day of February 2019. 

_______________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM
Chair, Board of Directors 

Attested and approved as to form: 

_______________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Page 8 of 30



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

MAP - 1310 S. BRAZOS

Page 9 of 30



Page 10 of 30



Page 11 of 30



Page 12 of 30



Page 13 of 30



Page 14 of 30



Page 15 of 30



Page 16 of 30



Page 17 of 30



Page 18 of 30



Page 19 of 30



Page 20 of 30



Page 21 of 30



Page 22 of 30



Page 23 of 30



SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY CORPORATION February 21, 2019 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation 

 
RESOLUTION 19FAC-02-21, AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY               
CORPORATION (SAHFC) TO APPROVE THE TRANSACTION WITH THE OAKS OF WESTLAKES                     
APARTMENTS, INCLUDING THE EXECUTION OF ALL DOCUMENTATION NECESSARY TO                 
CARRY OUT THE TRANSACTION; AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THE APARTMENTS AND                     
THE LEASE OF SUCH APARTMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF THE MEMBERSHIP                     
INTEREST IN SAHFC OAKS OF WESTLAKES LP, LLC; AND AUTHORIZING THE FINANCING                       
FOR SUCH TRANSACTION; AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 
 
 
________________________________    _________________________________ 
David Nisivoccia     Timothy E. Alcott 
President and CEO    Real Estate and Legal Services Officer 

 
 
REQUESTED ACTION: 
Consideration and approval regarding Resolution 19FAC-02-21, authorizing the San Antonio                   
Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC) to approve the transaction with the Oaks of Westlakes                         
Apartments, including the execution of all documentation necessary to carry out the transaction;                         
authorizing the purchase of the apartments and the lease of such apartments; authorizing the                           
acquisition of the membership interest in SAHFC Oaks of Westlakes LP, LLC; and authorizing the                             
financing for such transaction; and other matters in connection therewith  

FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation will be paid a $225,000.00 closing fee, 27.5% of the                             
cash flow after debt service and rent, which collectively is estimated to generate approximately                           
$118,000.00 in rent and income in year one and increase to $174,000.00 in year seven. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Millbrook Realty Group (Millbrook) has proposed a public-private partnership with the San                       
Antonio Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC) to acquire the Oaks of Westlakes Apartments                       
located at 534 Hunt Lane, San Antonio, Texas. Millbrook is a real estate acquisition firm, which                               
currently owns 1,558 units across the country. Eric Trucksess, its president, has twenty-five years                           
of experience in real estate. This is a 268-unit market rate project built in 1984. SAHFC is                                 
participating in the project to convert 50% of the market rate units to affordable units and to lease                                   
them to individuals and families earning below 80% of the San Antonio median family income. 

Neither SAHA nor SAHFC will issue any debt for, or invest any funds in, the transaction. A                                 
Millbrook-controlled partnership (Investment Partnership) will be required to raise all of the debt                         
(approximately $21,000,000.00) and equity (approximately $4,000,000.00) needed for the                 
Project and undertake approximately $1,500,000.00 of rehabilitation to the Project. At the closing                         
of their loans, SAHFC will acquire the Project with funds supplied by the Investment Partnership                             
as an upfront lease payment on the lease from SAHFC to the Investment Partnership equal to the                                 
purchase price of the Project. Thereafter, SAHFC will receive rent of $25,000 per year. The lease                               
will have a term of 75 years and will require the Investment Partnership to rehabilitate and                               
operate the Project. SAHFC will have to subordinate its interest in the Project to the Investment                               

 
Page 24 of 30



 

Partnership’s debt on the Project. The Project will be exempt from property taxes for any year                               
that it has 50% of the units set aside for individuals and families making less than 80% of the                                     
median family income. The Investment Partnership may sell its interest under the lease at any                             
time; however, SAHFC will have to remain the owner of the Project for the full term, unless the                                   
Investment Partnership agrees otherwise. 

At closing, SAHFC will create a limited liability company, which will be a limited partner in the                                 
Investment Partnership, which will enable it to receive 27.5% of the cash flow from the Project. It                                 
is estimated that this will generate approximately $118,000.00 in rent and income in year one and                               
increase to $174,000.00 in year seven. Should the Investment Partnership wish to sell its                           
leasehold interest, SAHFC can elect to convert its interest into rent under the lease or receive                               
27.5% of the net cash proceeds after the equity and debt is paid back. In all events, SAHFC will                                     
remain the owner of the Project unless it agrees to sell its interest and put the Project on the tax                                       
rolls. 

SAHFC will also enter into a development agreement addressing the rehabilitation and operation                         
of the Project. 

STRATEGIC GOAL: 
Strategically expand the supply of affordable housing. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 19FAC-02-21 
Map 
 

 
 

Page 25 of 30



 

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION 

The undersigned officer of the San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation, a Texas            
nonprofit corporation created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (SAHFC) hereby              
certifies as follows: 

1) In accordance with its bylaws, the Board of Directors of SAHFC (Board) held a              
meeting on February 21, 2019 (Meeting), of the duly constituted officers and members of the               
Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present. Whereupon among other business             
transacted at the Meeting, a written 

RESOLUTION 19FAC-02-21, AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING       
FACILITY CORPORATION (SAHFC) TO APPROVE THE TRANSACTION WITH THE         
OAKS OF WESTLAKES APARTMENTS, INCLUDING THE EXECUTION OF ALL         
DOCUMENTATION NECESSARY TO CARRY OUT THE TRANSACTION;       
AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THE APARTMENTS AND THE LEASE OF SUCH           
APARTMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF THE MEMBERSHIP       
INTEREST IN SAHFC OAKS OF WESTLAKES LP, LLC; AND AUTHORIZING THE           
FINANCING FOR SUCH TRANSACTION; AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION         
THEREWITH 
 

(the Resolution) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed. It was               
then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due discussion, said               
motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and carried by a majority vote                
of the Board. 

2) A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached               
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of                
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified                
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the                
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Bylaws of SAHFC. 

SIGNED _________________________, 2019. 

 
 
_______________________  
David Nisivoccia 
Secretary/Treasurer  

 
 
 

   

 
Page 26 of 30



San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation 
Resolution 19FAC-02-21 

RESOLUTION 19FAC-02-21, AUTHORIZING THE SAN ANTONIO HOUSING FACILITY               
CORPORATION (SAHFC) TO APPROVE THE TRANSACTION WITH THE OAKS OF WESTLAKES                     
APARTMENTS, INCLUDING THE EXECUTION OF ALL DOCUMENTATION NECESSARY TO                 
CARRY OUT THE TRANSACTION; AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF THE APARTMENTS AND                     
THE LEASE OF SUCH APARTMENTS; AUTHORIZING THE ACQUISITION OF THE MEMBERSHIP                     
INTEREST IN SAHFC OAKS OF WESTLAKES LP, LLC; AND AUTHORIZING THE FINANCING                       
FOR SUCH TRANSACTION; AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH 

WHEREAS, Millbrook Realty Group (Millbrook) has proposed a public private partnership with the                         
San Antonio Housing Facility Corporation (SAHFC) to acquire a 268-unit multifamily housing                       
facility (Housing Facility) known as the Oaks of Westlakes Apartments, located at 534 Hunt Lane,                             
San Antonio, Texas, (Project); and 

WHEREAS, SAHFC has agreed to (i) acquire the Land and own the Project and lease it to a                                   
development partnership (Partnership), which will be controlled by Millbrook Realty Group                     
pursuant to a seventy-five year Ground Lease (Ground Lease), and (ii) serve as the sole member                               
of a limited liability company, which will be a limited partner of the Partnership in connection with                                 
the financing of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Ground Lease will require an upfront lease payment sufficient to enable SAHFC                           
to acquire the Project; and 

WHEREAS, SAHFC will enter into a Development Agreement with the Partnership to ensure that                           
the Project is rehabilitated; and 

WHEREAS, SAHFC will also create a limited liability company to serve as a limited partner in the                                 
Partnership (SAHFC Limited Partner); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the financing of the Project, the Partnership will enter into a loan                               
transaction for a loan in the amount of approximately $18,000,000.00 and a mezzanine loan in                             
the amount of approximately $3,000,000.00 (Loan); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the execution of the Loan, the Partnership and/or SAHFC will be                             
required to enter into certain agreements, including, but not limited to, a promissory note, a                             
construction loan agreement, a deed of trust, together with a joinder of deed of trust and various                                 
assignments and certificates (Loan Documents); and 

WHEREAS, the Partnership will raise and contribute approximately $4,000,000.00 of equity to                       
acquire and rehabilitate the Project (Equity Financing); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Equity Financing, the Partnership and SAHFC Limited Partner                         
will be required to enter into certain agreements, including, but not limited to, a limited                             
partnership agreement, and closing certificates (Equity Documents); and 

Page 27 of 30



WHEREAS, Millbrook and SAHFC have negotiated the attached term sheet (Term Sheet)                       
governing their relationship and the terms for acquiring the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the public interest and to the benefit of the                                   
citizens and residents of San Antonio for the various entities to enter into the transactions                             
described above so that the Partnership may construct the Project; and 

WHEREAS, staff requests the Board of Commissioners authorize the President and CEO, or                         
designee, to execute all documents necessary to consummate such transaction; and 

WHEREAS, this Board of Directors has reviewed the foregoing and determined that the action                           
herein authorized is in furtherance of the public purposes of SAHFC. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of SAHA hereby: 

1) The Project, the Term Sheet, the various forms of financing contemplated for the                       
Project, including but not limited to the Equity Financing, the Loan, and the terms                         
of the Equity Documents, the Lease and the Development Agreement, and the                     
Loan Documents, are hereby authorized and approved when such documents are                   
approved by the officers signing them.

2) The President, any Vice President, the Secretary, the Treasurer, any Assistant                   
Secretary, or any of them, are hereby authorized to execute any and all                       
documentation required for the financing and construction of the Project,                 
including, but not limited to, the Equity Documents, the Lease and the                     
Development Agreement, the Loan Documents, the Land or the Project, and all                     
other documents relating to the Equity Financing, and the Loan to which the                       
Partnership, the General Partner, and/or SAHFC is a party.

3) The purchase of the Land, the lease of the Land, and the acquisition of                         
membership interest in the SAHFC Limited Partner by SAHFC, are approved and                     
the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, the Treasurer, the Executive                   
Director, and any Assistant Secretary, or any of them, are hereby authorized to                       
execute the documents required to be executed by SAHFC in order to effect such                         
transactions.

4) The President, any Vice President, the Secretary, the Treasurer, and any Assistant                     
Secretary, or any of them, and, if required by the form of the document, the                           
Secretary and any Assistant Secretary, or any of them, of SAHFC are authorized                       
and directed to modify, execute and deliver any of the documents to be signed by                           
or consented to by SAHFC, and any and all certificates and other instruments                       
necessary to carry out the intent thereof and hereof. The President, any Vice                       
President, the Secretary, the Treasurer, any Assistant Secretary, or any of them,                     
are authorized to negotiate and approve such changes in, or additions to, the                       
terms of any of the documents, including amendments, renewals, and extensions,                   
as such officers shall deem necessary or appropriate upon the advice of counsel                       
to SAHFC, and approval of the terms of any of the documents by such officers and                             

Page 28 of 30



this Board shall be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery of such                         
documents. 

5) The officers of this Board, or any of them, are authorized to take any and all action                               
necessary to carry out and consummate the transactions described in or                   
contemplated by the documents approved hereby or otherwise to give effect to                     
the actions authorized hereby and the intent hereof.

6) The officers of this Board hereby approve the selection of Bracewell LLP as                       
counsel to the Limited Partner and SAHFC for this transaction.

7) If any section, paragraph, clause, or provisions of this Resolution shall be held to                         
be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section,                   
paragraph, clause, or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of                       
this Resolution.

8) The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and                         
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are                           
adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the Board.

9) All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any                       
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and                         
the provisions of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters                         
resolved herein.

10) This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of                       
the State of Texas and the United States of America.

11) This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage.

Passed and approved the 21st day of February 2019. 

____________________________ 
Morris A. Stribling, DPM 
Chair, Board of Directors 

Attested and approved as to form: 

_____________________________ 
David Nisivoccia 
Secretary/Treasurer 

Page 29 of 30



OPPORTUNITY LIVES HERE
@HousingSAT

MAP - 534 HUNT LANE

Page 30 of 30


	1. Cover-SAHFC-02-21-19
	1A. Agenda for SAHFC-Special Board Meeting-02-21-19
	2. Meeting Minutes of November 1, 2018-San Antonio Housing Facility Corp-Ops. Mtg.
	3. Resolution 19FAC-02-22-SAHFC Sale of Brazos-Memo-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	3A. Resolution 19FAC-02-22-SAHFC Sale of Brazos-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	3B. Resolution 19FAC-02-22-SAHFC Sale of Brazos-Map-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	3C.Resolution 19FAC-02-22-Sale of Brazos-Letters of Support-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	3D. Resolution 19FAC-02-22-SAHFC Sale of Brazos-Ad List-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	4. Resolution 19FAC-02-21-Oaks of Westlakes-Memo-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	4A. Resolution 19FAC-02-21-Oaks of Westlakes-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19
	4B. Resolution 19FAC-02-21-Oaks of Westlakes-Map-Special Board Mtg.-02-21-19



